
MEMBER AGENCIES 
 BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY  

* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
March 28, 2022 

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 54953(e) AND SBWMA RESOLUTION 2022-05, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR 
VIDEO CONFERENCE ONLY. THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE BY JOINING THE ZOOM MEETING  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09 AND SUBMITTING THEIR PUBLIC COMMENTS IN A LIVE 
MEETING FORMAT. ANY EMAILS SENT TO rethininker@rethinkwaste.org WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRIOR TO 
THE MEETING. 

Live verbal public comments may be made by members of the public joining the meeting via Zoom. Zoom access information is provided above. Use the 
“raise hand” feature (for those joining by phone, press *9 to “raise hand”) during the public comment period for the agenda item you wish to address. 
The CHAIR will call on people to speak by name provided or last 4 digits of phone number for dial-in attendees. Please clearly state your full name for the 
record at the start of your public comment 

Written public comments for the record may be submitted in advance by 12:00 p.m. on the meeting date by email to: rethinker@rethinkwaste.org and will 
be made part of the written record but will not be read verbally at the meeting. Written public comments submitted by email should adhere to the 
following: 1) Clearly indicate the Agenda Item No. or specify “Public” in the Subject Line for items not on the agenda and 2) Include the submitter’s full 
name 

TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPANTS 
ALL LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS WILL PARTICIPATE BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE PURSUANT TO GOVERNOR 
NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20 

PURSUANT TO RALPH M. BROWN ACT, GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, ALL VOTES SHALL BE BY ROLL CALL DUE TO ALL LEGISLATIVE 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PARTICIPATING BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE 

ANY REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION SHOULD BE ADDRESSED TO CYNDI URMAN AT CURMAN@RETHINKWASTE.ORG. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Committee on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. If there are more than five individuals
wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment 
speakers will be called upon at the end of the Committee Meeting. If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Committee may 
briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Committee's general policy is to refer 
items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Committee agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that 

3. Executive Director’s Report (Verbal Report) p.3

4. Approval of Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these
items unless members of the Committee, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items removed from the
Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion.
A. Approval of the Minutes from the February 7, 2022 Legislative Committee Meeting ACTION p. 7 
B. Approval of the Minutes from the March 7, 2022 Legislative Committee Meeting ACTION p. 11 

5. Legislative Updates from EEC and Committee Discussion p. 17

SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, April 4, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. 

VIA ZOOM VIDEO OR TELECONFERENCE MEETING ONLY 
Link to Join 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09 

Phone number for voice access: 1 (669) 900 9128 
Meeting ID: 822 5770 4196 

Passcode: 121755

FULL PACKET PAGE 1 of 35

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09
mailto:CURMAN@RETHINKWASTE.ORG
mailto:CURMAN@RETHINKWASTE.ORG
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82257704196?pwd=WHFHY3VQSUV6OWNOL2tTejZWeFAwdz09


MEMBER AGENCIES 
 BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY  

* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
March 28, 2022 

6. Legislative Committee Member Comments

7. Adjourn

FULL PACKET PAGE 2 of 35



  
 

3 

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR’S 

UPDATE 
Agenda Item 3 is a verbal report only at the 

04/04/2022 SBWMA Legislative Committee Meeting 

    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3 
  

FULL PACKET PAGE 3 of 35



FULL PACKET PAGE 4 of 35



4

CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

Agenda Item 4 

FULL PACKET PAGE 5 of 35



FULL PACKET PAGE 6 of 35



 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 03/07/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p1 
 
 

4A 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

February 7, 2022 2:00PM 
Via Zoom Tele or Video Conference 

Call To Order: 2:05PM 
1. Roll Call  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SBWMA Staff Members Present: Joe La Mariana, Julia Au, Cyndi Urman  
Others Present: Kayla Robinson, Environmental and Energy Consulting; Reed Addis, Environmental and Energy 
Consulting, Gordon Tong, Drew 
 
2. Public Comment 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the public wishing to address the Committee may do so, and the 
comments shall be limited to the Special Meeting notice topic(s). Speakers may join the Zoom meeting via the meeting link and 
using the “raise hand” feature and the Clerk of the Board will call on people. 

 
None 
 
3. Executive Director’s Welcome 
 
Executive Director La Mariana gave the following verbal updates noting that the agency has 3 main initiatives 
currently: 

• The Operations RFQ submission deadline was January 12 and continues to take a lot of staff time.  
Interviews with qualified candidates are scheduled for the week of February 23, and the Ad Hoc 
board committee will meet to evaluate the proposals in March.  In May or June staff will give an 
update to the Board, and the contract award will be on the Board agenda at the November 2022 
meeting. He noted that the board needs to be prepared for a significant increase in costs with this 
new operations agreement. 

• The SB 1383 implementation takes a lot of staff focus as well. There will be a TAC meeting on 
Thursday to discuss the progress on SB 1383 program implementation. 

Member Present Absent 

Michael Brownrigg X  
Adam Rak  X 
Carole Groom X  
Fran Dehn X  

FULL PACKET PAGE 7 of 35



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 03/07/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p2 

• Lastly, staff has initialized the Site Optimization Study that was approved at the January Board 
meeting 

 
4. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
on these items unless members of the Committee, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items 
removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 

A. Approval of the Minutes from the November 1, 2021 Legislative Committee Meeting 
 
Motion/Second: Brownrigg/Dehn 
Roll Call Vote” 3-0-01 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Legislative Updates from Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) and Committee Discussion 
 
Staff Au introduced Kayla Robinson from EEC. 
 
Kayla gave an update on the legislative session timing noting that on January 3, California started the second 
year of a two-year cycle meaning that any bill that gets introduced this January, or that didn’t reach completion 
last year must make it all the way through the process by September. February 18 is the deadline for introducing 
new bills. 
 
EEC then gave the following updates on RethinkWaste’s legislative priorities: 
 
Batteries 
Senator Newman had authored a version of the battery bill last year and is re-introducing the legislation this 
year.  Also, this year, Assemblymember Irwin has shown interest in the battery bill, so the bills will be introduced 
in the Senate and Assembly simultaneously to show that the battery recycling issue is a huge priority for the 
legislature.  EEC has been working with key opposition groups to hammer out the details of the bill and so we 
will be introducing spot bills, which aren’t fully written, but lays out a lot of the intent and priorities for the bills.  
Reed Addis added that the energy and effort that the SBWMA has put into this over the last two years, key 
opposition groups are actively engaging in the conversation, and with two different legislators making this a 
priority makes it feel like the battery bill is in a much better place this year and increases chances for success. 
 
Member Brownrigg asked how many co-sponsors were there on the battery bill last year. 
 
Kayla Robinson answered two, the California Product Stewardship Council, and Californians Against Waste. 
 
Member Brownrigg noted that it is on us to increase the co-sponsorship of this bill to help. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that he did a telephone campaign to this effect last year but needs to step it 
up.  He has also encouraged EEC to try to get formal support from the firefighter community. 
 

Member Yes No Abstain Absent 

Michael Brownrigg X    
Adam Rak    X 
Carole Groom X    
Fran Dehn X    

FULL PACKET PAGE 8 of 35



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 03/07/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p3 

Member Brownrigg directed staff to give committee and board members talking points to reach out to firefighter’s 
associations, and a list of whose districts the other recycling facilities are in we could reach out to them politician 
to politician for more help. 
 
Kayla Robinson added that Senator Newman and Assemblymember Irwin’s office will be providing talking points 
to uplift the importance of this issue to other members of the legislature so EEC can get those to you. 
 
Reed Addis added that also putting pressure on other locally elected officials to put additional pressure on the 
state legislators can also be a way to elevate the issue. 
 
Member Brownrigg reiterated that it would help to have a few talking points, and targets and we can reach 
people that staff can’t reach. 
 
SB1383 Procurement Requirements 
EEC has started conversations with government and environmental group coalitions to talk about solutions to the 
SB1383 procurement problem for local governments.  The goal being to create a group that can have 
conversations with CalRecycle and the legislature and ultimately introduce a bill that will address these 
concerns.  Reed Addis noted that they are navigating the middle road in that the SBWMA is supportive of the 
law, but there are legitimate logistical concerns that need to be addressed. 
 
Member Brownrigg commented that on the local level, it’s going to get worse as the regulations start to effect 
residents, especially those in apartments or who manage apartments, so the sooner an author can be found the 
better, because once they start receiving letters on this bill it’s going to be hard to get a legislator to commit. 
 
High level update of bills that have been introduced so far: 
Senator Portantino amended SB45 and it is currently a spot bill related to SB 1383 and they think it could be 
funding related. 
 
AB 1690 by Assemblymember Rivas which will ban single-use filters and e-cigarettes which have a waste 
component, so we will be closely watching this bill language. 
 
Senator Allen has reintroduced SB54 which is all about plastic extended producer responsibility, and plastic 
reduction, and putting the responsibility on producers. This is a two-year bill.  She noted that if there is a 
legislative replacement to the plastics ballot initiative, this is what would that look like. There are a lot of groups 
interested in this, and there are a lot of conversations about this and is excited that there might be a 
compromise. Reed added that it will come down to money and if the campaign can raise enough money to fight 
off the big oil opposition. 
 
Member Brownrigg asked if this question is one that the SBWMA should wrestle with from a policy point of view. 
 
Reed Addis noted that if there are policy changes made through this senate bill compromise EEC would bring 
that to this committee right away to discuss any support changes that might make sense. 
 
6. Legislative Committee Member Comments 
 
7. Adjourn 2:44PM 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 9 of 35



FULL PACKET PAGE 10 of 35



 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 04/04/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4B - p1 
 
 

4B 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

March 7, 2022 2:00PM 
Via Zoom Tele or Video Conference 

Call To Order: 2:15PM 
1. Roll Call  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SBWMA Staff Members Present: Joe La Mariana, Julia Au, Cyndi Urman  
Others Present: Kayla Robinson, Environmental and Energy Consulting; Reed Addis, Environmental and Energy 
Consulting, Gordon Tong, Drew 
 
2. Public Comment 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the public wishing to address the Committee may do so, and the 
comments shall be limited to the Special Meeting notice topic(s). Speakers may join the Zoom meeting via the meeting link and 
using the “raise hand” feature and the Clerk of the Board will call on people. 

 
None 
 
3. Executive Director’s Welcome 
 
Due to the late start and to preserve our quorum, Executive Director La Mariana did not give updates. 
 
4. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
on these items unless members of the Committee, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items 
removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 
A. Approval of the Minutes from the February 7, 2022 Legislative Committee Meeting 

 
Due to the late start the committee will vote on the February 7, 2022 minutes at the April Legislative Committee 
meeting, so they could focus on the legislative discussion. 
 

Member Present Absent 

Michael Brownrigg X  
Adam Rak X  
Carole Groom X  
Fran Dehn  X 

FULL PACKET PAGE 11 of 35



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 04/04/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4B - p2 

5. Discussion on SBWMA’s Co-sponsored bills: 
• SB 1215 (Newman) and AB 2440 (Irwin): The Responsible Battery Recycling Act 
• AB 1985 (R. Rivas): Compost & Mulch Market Development Act  

 
Kayla Robinson gave an overview of the current legislative bills the Agency is co-sponsoring this legislative 
session.   They include: 

• SB 1215 (Newman) and AB 2440 (Irwin): The Responsible Battery Recycling Act – RethinkWaste is 
co-sponsoring this with Californians Against Waste (CAW) and the California Product Stewardship 
Council (CPSC).  These bills will be moving through both the Assembly and the Senate at the same time 
and will be amended at the same time.  EEC is currently talking to opposition, as well as committee 
consultants in both houses to plan for those committee meetings likely in April. 

 
Reed Addis added that tactically we are in a very good position on this bill.  Having said that, it’s important for 
the legislative committee members to now be reaching out to colleagues across the state to create energy 
throughout California so communities are putting pressure from a grass roots perspective on their legislatures to 
say that this is an important issue to them. 
 

• AB 1985 (R. Rivas): Compost & Mulch Market Development Act – RethinkWaste is also co-sponsoring 
this bill because of concerns around SB 1383’s extensive organic procurement requirements.  This bill allows 
for local governments to get relief on the procurement side of SB1383.  EEC will be meeting with CalRecycle 
on this issue in the next few months to hopefully find agreement on what would be an acceptable path 
forward for both CalRecycle and local governments. 

 
Executive Director noted that the talking points to the Legislative Committee members were distributed on March 
2. 
 
The committee discussed the talking points memo they had received by email, and agreed to give staff 
feedback, and then get the talking points out to the full board. 
 
6. Legislative Updates from EEC and Committee Discussion 

• 2022 Legislative Session Introduced Bills the SBWMA is tracking 
 
Kayla Robinson then went over a list of introduced bills that EEC is recommending the SBWMA support in this 
legislative session. 
 
AB 1690 (L. Rivas) – Ban on single use vapes and filters sponsored by the National Stewardship Action 
Council.  The rationale for supporting this bill is that vape batteries have been a really big source of lithium-ion 
battery fires, and single use filters have been one of the biggest sources of litter in California.  This bill gets at 
both of those RethinkWaste priorities. 
 
SB 983 (Eggman) – Right to Repair sponsored by Californians Against Waste (CAW). The rationale for SBWMA 
support on this is because engaging in this issue is part of the long-term plan for the Agency as well as the goal 
for this bill to be to repair electronics, most of which have lithium-ion batteries in them so this would create less 
electronic waste. 
 
SB 1046 (Eggman) would require the produce bags at grocery stores to be either compostable or recyclable by 
a date that is not yet set.  The rationale for supporting this bill is that plastic bags continue to be an issue in the 
waste stream, and this is another way to continue to get at the plastic bag issue. 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 12 of 35



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 04/04/2022                                                                            AGENDA ITEM: 4B - p3 

SB 1256 (Wieckoswski) would ban the sale of disposable propane cylinders.  She noted this is the one-pound 
canister people use when camping, and the legislation would go into effect in 2028 to give time for 
manufacturers to adapt. The rationale for support of this is that these smaller cylinders are a fire risk, and there 
are reusable alternatives on the market. 
 
Member Brownrigg noted that if reusable propane containers are way heavier that the disposable propane 
cylinders that will be difficult for backpackers, and he thought most people knew how to dispose of them safely, 
and so he felt more ambivalent about this bill. 
 
Member Brownrigg is now absent quorum no longer present. 
 
7. Legislative Committee Member Comments 
 
8. Adjourn 2:34PM 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 13 of 35



FULL PACKET PAGE 14 of 35



  
 

5 

LEGISLATIVE 
UPDATES 

    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 
  

FULL PACKET PAGE 15 of 35



FULL PACKET PAGE 16 of 35



 

 
 
SBWMA LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE PACKET 04/04/2022  AGENDA ITEM: 5 - p1 
 

 
5 

 
STAFF REPORT 

To:   SBWMA Legislative Committee Members 
From:   Julia Au, Sr. Outreach, Education and Compliance Manager 
Date:   April 4, 2022 Legislative Committee Meeting 
Subject:  Legislative Updates from Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) and Committee 

Discussion  
 
Recommendation 
This staff report is for discussion purposes only. 
 
Summary 
The Agency’s lobbyist, Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) will provide an update on the 2022 California 
Legislative Session activities, including updates about the three bills the Agency is co-sponsoring this legislative 
session and other bills the Agency is supporting and tracking.  
 
Notably updates include that Agency con-sponsored AB 1985 (R. Rivas) passed out of the Assembly Natural 
Resources Committee on March 21 with a 11-0 vote. The two battery bills have been scheduled for their first 
committee hearing dates and Executive Director Joe La Mariana is expected to testify at both committees. The 
hearings dates are as follows: 

• AB 2440 (Irwin) will be heard in the Assembly Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials Committee on 
April 5 (note this bill has been double referred and will also be heard in the Natural Resources Committee 
second) 

• SB 1215 (Newman) will be heard in the Senate Environmental Quality Committee on April 20  
 

The Agency also signed onto a joint budget letter requesting a one-time $180 million increase in local assistance 
funding to help with implementation of SB 1383 (part of Attachment B).  
 
Attachment A contains the list of bills EEC is currently tracking for the Agency and Attachment B includes the final 
legislative support letters the Agency has sent or signed onto in the last month.  
 

Attachments: 
Attachment A – Bill Tracking for 2021-2022 Session updated as of March 27, 2022 
Attachment B – Legislative Letters 

 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 17 of 35



RethinkWaste Legislative Update
Sunday, March 27, 2022

  Priority 1 (High)

 

  AB 1985 (Rivas, Robert  D)   Organic waste: list: available products.
  Status: 3/22/2022-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. with recommendation: To

Consent Calendar. (Ayes 11. Noes 0.) (March 21). Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
  Location: 3/21/2022-A. APPR.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: Current law requires, no later than January 1, 2018, the State Air Resources Board to
approve and begin implementing a comprehensive short-lived climate pollutant strategy to achieve a
reduction in statewide emissions of methane by 40%, hydrofluorocarbon gases by 40%, and
anthropogenic black carbon by 50% below 2013 levels by 2030. Current law requires the methane
emissions reduction goals to include a 50% reduction in the level of the statewide disposal of organic
waste from the 2014 level by 2020 and a 75% reduction by 2025. Current law requires the
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in consultation with the state board, to adopt
regulations to achieve these organic waste reduction goals, including a requirement intended to meet
the goal that not less than 20% of edible food that is currently disposed of be recovered for human
consumption by 2025. This bill would require the department to compile and maintain on its internet
website a list, organized by ZIP Code, of information regarding persons or entities that produce and
have available in the state organic waste products and update the list at least every 6 months.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Sponsor  Priority 1 (High)       
    Notes:  Support letter submitted.
 

  AB 2440 (Irwin D)   Battery and Battery-Embedded Product Recycling and Fire Risk Reduction Act of 2022.
  Status: 3/3/2022-Referred to Coms. on E.S. & T.M. and NAT. RES.
  Location: 3/3/2022-A. E.S. & T.M.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 444  ASSEMBLY ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND
TOXIC MATERIALS, QUIRK, Chair

  Summary: Would enact the Battery and Battery-Embedded Product Recycling and Fire Risk Reduction
Act of 2022, which would prohibit a person from knowingly disposing of a lithium-ion battery in a
container or receptacle that is intended for the collection of solid waste or recyclable materials, unless
the container or receptacle is designated for the collection of batteries for recycling, as provided.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Sponsor  Priority 1 (High)       
    Notes:  Support letter submitted.
 

  SB 54 (Allen D)   Plastic Pollution Producer Responsibility Act.
  Status: 1/24/2022-Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 29. Noes 7.) Ordered to the Assembly. In Assembly.

Read first time. Held at Desk.
  Location: 1/24/2022-A. DESK
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: Would establish the Plastic Pollution Producer Responsibility Act, which would prohibit
producers of single-use, disposable packaging or single-use, disposable food service ware products
from offering for sale, selling, distributing, or importing in or into the state such packaging or products
that are manufactured on or after January 1, 2032, unless they are recyclable or compostable.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 1 (High)       
 

  SB 1215 (Newman D)   Battery and Battery-Embedded Product Recycling and Fire Risk Reduction Act of
2022.

  Status: 3/2/2022-Referred to Com. on E.Q.
  Location: 3/2/2022-S. E.Q.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Page 1/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 18 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=FE0GqpQ2y1k5N28x3ZDWeNunG0ivtQsAqly7OOFFZYHtf4S7cdSCzAKgmLuftxeY
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=FE0GqpQ2y1k5N28x3ZDWeNunG0ivtQsAqly7OOFFZYHtf4S7cdSCzAKgmLuftxeY
https://a30.asmdc.org/
https://a30.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HEs8BduiCqLefgpoTu6bl%2BfLR1Pd%2B%2BKQXNmbY303VHxm35nPIbprz3LepsPQW4dN
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HEs8BduiCqLefgpoTu6bl%2BfLR1Pd%2B%2BKQXNmbY303VHxm35nPIbprz3LepsPQW4dN
https://a44.asmdc.org/
https://a44.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=4XfYQduGM5Z3hC4s5mzK0r4Gq1%2FZmtL0WPRzhBUV6tW%2FlpBJ8%2BM9jIp9W9flJjeJ
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=4XfYQduGM5Z3hC4s5mzK0r4Gq1%2FZmtL0WPRzhBUV6tW%2FlpBJ8%2BM9jIp9W9flJjeJ
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=YbzDN1T1ez3vFh4EP9vSG2g6gs7J8KWQMdnfWFSNw%2B0hYDboDIqpLS534XPmDSWF
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=YbzDN1T1ez3vFh4EP9vSG2g6gs7J8KWQMdnfWFSNw%2B0hYDboDIqpLS534XPmDSWF
https://sd29.senate.ca.gov/
https://sd29.senate.ca.gov/


  Calendar:  4/20/2022  1:30 p.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 2100  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair

  Summary: Would enact the Battery and Battery-Embedded Product Recycling and Fire Risk Reduction
Act of 2022, which would prohibit a person from knowingly disposing of a lithium-ion battery in a
container or receptacle that is intended for the collection of solid waste or recyclable materials, unless
the container or receptacle is designated for the collection of batteries for recycling, as provided.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Sponsor  Priority 1 (High)       
    Notes:  Support letter submitted.

  Priority 2 (Medium)

 

  AB 661 (Bennett D)   Recycling: materials.
  Status: 2/1/2022-In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.
  Location: 2/1/2022-S. RLS.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, administered by the Department
of Resources Recycling and Recovery, generally regulates the disposal, management, and recycling of
solid waste. This bill would require a state agency, if fitness and quality are equal, to purchase recycled
products instead of nonrecycled products, without regard to cost. The bill would substantially revise
product categories. The bill would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in
consultation with the DGS, to update a list of products and minimum recycled content percentages, as
determined to be appropriate, commencing January 1, 2026, and every 3 years thereafter. The bill
would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery and the DGS to incorporate the
updated list of products and minimum recycled content requirements into the State Contracting
Manual, the Financial Information System for California, and the financial system of any department not
utilizing the Financial Information System for California. The bill would require the Department of
Resources Recycling and Recovery to maintain an internet website with current SABRC products and
minimum recycled content requirements.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 1690 (Rivas, Luz D)   Tobacco and cannabis products: single-use components.
  Status: 3/2/2022-Re-referred to Com. on HEALTH.
  Location: 2/10/2022-A. HEALTH
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 1100  ASSEMBLY HEALTH, WOOD, Chair
  Summary: The Stop Tobacco Access to Kids Enforcement Act, an enforcing agency, as defined, may

assess civil penalties against any person, firm, or corporation that sells, gives, or furnishes specified
tobacco and cigarette related items, including cigarette papers, to a person who is under 21 years of
age, except as specified. This bill would prohibit a person or entity from selling, giving, or furnishing to
another person of any age in this state a cigarette utilizing a single-use filter made of any material, a
single-use plastic device meant to facilitate manual manipulation or filtration of a cigar, a single-use
electronic cigarette, or a single-use integrated cannabis vaporizer.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Support  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

    Notes:  Sign-on and individual support letter submitted.
 

  AB 1857 (Garcia, Cristina D)   Solid waste.
  Status: 3/22/2022-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 8. Noes 3.) (March

21). Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
  Location: 3/21/2022-A. APPR.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: (1)The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 requires the department and
local agencies to maximize the use of all feasible source reduction, recycling, and composting options in
order to reduce the amount of solid waste that must be disposed of by transformation and land
disposal. This bill would require the department to certify that a local agency is in compliance with that
requirement before approving a permit for a new transformation, EMSW, or land disposal facility

Page 2/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 19 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=uKPiYI0Dd%2BdYr8UANE1hfzhKD8Lvn2L2OmCAV9KkMOaVqyiveJhUqPMhLZh%2FegTD
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=uKPiYI0Dd%2BdYr8UANE1hfzhKD8Lvn2L2OmCAV9KkMOaVqyiveJhUqPMhLZh%2FegTD
https://a37.asmdc.org/
https://a37.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=56oePYX93D77STHMf3On8rJObKONEdf9T8ygqUl66TfEk%2FftbKxY83uJs9PEp5Gx
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=56oePYX93D77STHMf3On8rJObKONEdf9T8ygqUl66TfEk%2FftbKxY83uJs9PEp5Gx
https://a39.asmdc.org/
https://a39.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=9uKBZJo3EiRbqF2Z9mtX6LMRb5dNSdmHej0Yv7lD4L57tHZnoczPTupws0V%2FRsoh
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=9uKBZJo3EiRbqF2Z9mtX6LMRb5dNSdmHej0Yv7lD4L57tHZnoczPTupws0V%2FRsoh
https://a58.asmdc.org/
https://a58.asmdc.org/


serving the local agency.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 1944 (Lee D)   Local government: open and public meetings.
  Status: 2/18/2022-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.
  Location: 2/18/2022-A. L. GOV.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: Current law, the Ralph M. Brown Act, requires, with specified exceptions, that all meetings
of a legislative body of a local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and public and that all
persons be permitted to attend and participate. Current law, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local
agency to use teleconferencing without complying with those specified teleconferencing requirements
in specified circumstances when a declared state of emergency is in effect, or in other situations
related to public health. This bill would specify that if a member of a legislative body elects to
teleconference from a location that is not public, the address does not need to be identified in the
notice and agenda or be accessible to the public when the legislative body has elected to allow
members to participate via teleconferencing.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 1953 (Maienschein D)   Drinking water: accessible water bottle refill stations.
  Status: 3/1/2022-Re-referred to Com. on E.S. & T.M.
  Location: 2/24/2022-A. E.S. & T.M.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 444  ASSEMBLY ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND
TOXIC MATERIALS, QUIRK, Chair

  Summary: Would require, by January 1, 2025, the owner or operator of a transit hub, local park, public
building, publicly owned building, shopping mall, or municipal golf course to install and maintain at least
one, or maintain at least one existing, accessible water bottle refill station, as prescribed. The bill
would also require those owners and operators that have a water bottle refill station that is not
accessible to upgrade, by January 1, 2025, the water bottle refill station to an accessible water bottle
refill station.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2026 (Friedman D)   Recycling: plastic packaging and carryout bags.
  Status: 3/24/2022-Re-referred to Com. on JUD.
  Location: 3/21/2022-A. JUD.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  9 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 437  ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY, STONE, Chair
  Summary: Would prohibit an online retailer that sells or offers for sale and ships purchased products

in or into the state from using single-use plastic packaging that consists of shipping envelopes,
cushioning, or void fill to package or transport the products, on and after January 1, 2024, for large
online retailers, as defined, and on and after January 1, 2026, for small online retailers, as defined. The
bill would prohibit a manufacturer, retailer, producer, or other distributor that sells or offers for sale and
ships purchased products in or into the state from using expanded or extruded polystyrene packaging
to package or transport the products, except as provided.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2208 (Kalra D)   Fluorescent lamps: sale and distribution: prohibition.
  Status: 2/24/2022-Referred to Com. on E.S. & T.M.
  Location: 2/24/2022-A. E.S. & T.M.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 444  ASSEMBLY ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND
TOXIC MATERIALS, QUIRK, Chair

Page 3/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 20 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=H3D2Qi3ng9CnfSiZBnOze9OViLlkXEah5%2FaUyAw5RUTXdkiuTaaejUeB7a%2FrCt1A
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=H3D2Qi3ng9CnfSiZBnOze9OViLlkXEah5%2FaUyAw5RUTXdkiuTaaejUeB7a%2FrCt1A
https://a25.asmdc.org/
https://a25.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ZFmYxVnwubKjfYbZtUrLYItVgsAqTbcfjd1cEQaM5DYFFhdEr2KML78eGVOxnUu0
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ZFmYxVnwubKjfYbZtUrLYItVgsAqTbcfjd1cEQaM5DYFFhdEr2KML78eGVOxnUu0
https://a77.asmdc.org/
https://a77.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JaJC54%2FPtfrmywWkTEpaxVGFbfeQbg4MDStYcRyPqApXGxStFOqhr89dYDgF7I%2Fr
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JaJC54%2FPtfrmywWkTEpaxVGFbfeQbg4MDStYcRyPqApXGxStFOqhr89dYDgF7I%2Fr
https://a43.asmdc.org/
https://a43.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=KvS7nmbXg0sbYppg2a6Jk4nB0BfALgTmWxqezUzLDGeYeN%2F2W4n9Bf3b9xKTpZA1
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=KvS7nmbXg0sbYppg2a6Jk4nB0BfALgTmWxqezUzLDGeYeN%2F2W4n9Bf3b9xKTpZA1
https://a27.asmdc.org/
https://a27.asmdc.org/


  Summary: Would prohibit, on and after January 1, 2024, a compact fluorescent lamp, as defined, and,
on and after January 1, 2025, a linear fluorescent lamp, as defined, from being offered for final sale,
sold at final sale, or distributed in this state as a new manufactured product. The bill would exempt
various lamps that meet specified criteria from that prohibition, including lamps used for image capture
and projection and lamps used for disinfection.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Support  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

    Notes:  Sign-on support letter submitted.
 

  AB 2374 (Bauer-Kahan D)   Crimes against public health and safety: illegal dumping.
  Status: 3/3/2022-Referred to Coms. on PUB. S. and B. & P.
  Location: 3/3/2022-A. PUB. S.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  9 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 126  ASSEMBLY PUBLIC SAFETY, JONES-SAWYER,
Chair

  Summary: Under current law, the dumping of commercial quantities of waste, as defined, is
punishable as a misdemeanor and also includes escalating fines. This bill would increase the maximum
fine for the dumping of commercial quantities of waste from $3000 to $5000 for the first conviction,
from $6000 to $10,000 for the second conviction, and from $10,000 to $20,000 for the third and any
subsequent convictions.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2387 (Garcia, Eduardo D)   Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought Preparation, Flood
Protection, Extreme Heat Mitigation, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2022.

  Status: 3/22/2022-Re-referred to Com. on W.,P., & W.
  Location: 3/3/2022-A. W.,P. & W.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  9 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 444  ASSEMBLY WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE, BAUER-KAHAN, Chair

  Summary: Would enact the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought Preparation, Flood
Protection, Extreme Heat Mitigation, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2022, which, if approved
by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $7,430,000,000 pursuant to
the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects for safe drinking water, wildfire prevention,
drought preparation, flood protection, extreme heat mitigation, and workforce development programs.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2638 (Bloom D)   School facilities: drinking water: water bottle filling stations.
  Status: 3/10/2022-Referred to Coms. on ED. and E.S. & T.M.
  Location: 3/10/2022-A. ED.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/6/2022  1:30 p.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 1100  ASSEMBLY EDUCATION, O'DONNELL, Chair
  Summary: This bill would require a school district or charter school to be equipped with water bottle

filling stations. The bill would require water bottle filling stations to be placed as specified, including a
minimum of one water bottle filling station per 150 people, and to meet specified requirements,
including dispensing safe, appealing, cooled, and filtered drinking water. The bill would require a school
district or charter school to allow pupils, teachers, and staff to bring and carry approved water bottles,
as specified. The bill would require administrators of a school district or charter school to inform
teachers, staff, parents, and pupils of their rights under these provisions and to encourage water
consumption through promotional and educational activities and signage, as specified. This bill
contains other related provisions and other existing laws.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2784 (Ting D)   Solid waste: thermoform plastic containers: postconsumer thermoform recycled plastic.
  Status: 3/17/2022-Referred to Com. on NAT. RES.

Page 4/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 21 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=LbcMw1849OSoRnh%2BT5877LHvsGAt1k%2BwWqXue8IqKM9sY4HiD3wvRRL60ctWcOZb
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=LbcMw1849OSoRnh%2BT5877LHvsGAt1k%2BwWqXue8IqKM9sY4HiD3wvRRL60ctWcOZb
https://a16.asmdc.org/
https://a16.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=wRwfvx%2FmmLnm3FIptfAPusR2vrw1WbtudmG740DcGygVYYhoVv1KQ8ProvMizteI
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=wRwfvx%2FmmLnm3FIptfAPusR2vrw1WbtudmG740DcGygVYYhoVv1KQ8ProvMizteI
https://a56.asmdc.org/
https://a56.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Js50HrMFj%2F5wo39QUYc8trtdJ7zXudpImhAH9Q9sKoP%2BQNSidya6WaIKVHY9YHUe
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Js50HrMFj%2F5wo39QUYc8trtdJ7zXudpImhAH9Q9sKoP%2BQNSidya6WaIKVHY9YHUe
https://a50.asmdc.org/
https://a50.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=aLbfzWiqJTyibTRu8PRJHgyuVDwuYz%2F7PvzEbt3Y4OX0kknV0TEL9P6gdIzWPkJk
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=aLbfzWiqJTyibTRu8PRJHgyuVDwuYz%2F7PvzEbt3Y4OX0kknV0TEL9P6gdIzWPkJk
https://a19.asmdc.org/
https://a19.asmdc.org/


  Location: 3/17/2022-A. NAT. RES.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, administered by the Department
of Resources Recycling and Recovery, requires a rigid plastic packaging container, as defined, sold or
offered for sale in this state, to meet, on average, at least one of 5 specified criteria, including that the
container be made from 25% postconsumer material. This bill, commencing January 1, 2025, would
require the total thermoform plastic containers sold by a producer to, on average, contain specified
amounts of postconsumer thermoform recycled plastic, as defined, per year pursuant to a tiered plan
that would require the total thermoform plastic containers to contain, on average, and depending on
the recycling rate, no less than 20% or 30% postconsumer recycled plastic per year on and after July
1, 2030. The bill would require, on or before March 1 of each year, a producer to report to the
department, under penalty of perjury, the amount in pounds and by resin type of virgin plastic and
postconsumer thermoform recycled plastic used to manufacture the thermoform plastic containers
offered for sale in the state in the previous calendar year.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  AB 2886 (Lee D)   Recycling: electric vehicle lithium-ion batteries.
  Status: 3/24/2022-Referred to Coms. on E.S. & T.M. and NAT. RES. From committee chair, with author's

amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on E.S. & T.M. Read second time and amended.
  Location: 3/24/2022-A. E.S. & T.M.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 444  ASSEMBLY ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND
TOXIC MATERIALS, QUIRK, Chair

  Summary: The Rechargeable Battery Recycling Act of 2006 requires every retailer, as defined, to have
in place a system for the acceptance and collection of used rechargeable batteries for reuse, recycling,
or proper disposal. The act requires the system for the acceptance and collection of used rechargeable
batteries to include, at a minimum, specified elements, including, among others, the take-back at no
cost to the consumer of a used rechargeable battery of the type or brand that the retailer sold or
previously sold. This bill would require producers, as defined, of electric vehicle lithium-ion batteries to
establish a stewardship program for electric vehicle lithium-ion batteries, either individually or through
the creation of one or more stewardship organizations. The bill would require a stewardship
organization or producer, on or before June 30, 2026, to submit to the Department of Resources
Recycling and Recovery a stewardship plan for the collection, transportation, and recycling, and the
safe and proper management, of electric vehicle lithium-ion batteries that are out of warranty in the
state.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  SB 38 (Wieckowski D)   Beverage containers.
  Status: 2/14/2022-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-

referred to Com. on NAT. RES. (Amended 2/14/2022)
  Location: 7/14/2021-A. NAT. RES.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: Would require beverage manufacturers, as defined, in the state to form a beverage
container stewardship organization. The organization would be required to develop and submit to the
department a plan, annual report, and budget for the recovery and recycling of empty beverage
containers in the state similar to that described in the Used Mattress Recovery and Recycling Act. The
bill would require the organization to establish a stewardship fee, to be paid by beverage
manufacturer members of the organization, to assist in covering the costs of implementing the
beverage container stewardship program. The bill would require the organization to reimburse the
department for the department’s costs of enforcing the program. The bill would require the department
to deposit all moneys submitted for reimbursement into the Beverage Container Stewardship Fund,
which the bill would create in the State Treasury.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  SB 45 (Portantino D)   Short-lived climate pollutants: organic waste reduction goals: local jurisdiction
assistance.

  Status: 1/24/2022-Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 36. Noes 0.) Ordered to the Assembly. In Assembly.
Page 5/7

FULL PACKET PAGE 22 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QvIOBBlwYluPyojR0hcbXDc%2BqsqK8ysQiGC0jY8kbz0cn94MdXFBbKz1xFIcdFNG
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QvIOBBlwYluPyojR0hcbXDc%2BqsqK8ysQiGC0jY8kbz0cn94MdXFBbKz1xFIcdFNG
https://a25.asmdc.org/
https://a25.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=%2Bgr7qJYfvAmI1mBHpNEQocjIi0h7C99EddPb0IKpwM%2BHDotLNyy7QHwd4gwXzzV5
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=%2Bgr7qJYfvAmI1mBHpNEQocjIi0h7C99EddPb0IKpwM%2BHDotLNyy7QHwd4gwXzzV5
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=8odCzWwSvgLYNlAvfSvx6DTyq%2BbXfkunp0af9qKd%2Fji6OIOeoeMtsblocwV23W%2Bf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=8odCzWwSvgLYNlAvfSvx6DTyq%2BbXfkunp0af9qKd%2Fji6OIOeoeMtsblocwV23W%2Bf
http://sd25.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd25.senate.ca.gov/


Read first time. Held at Desk.
  Location: 1/24/2022-A. DESK
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Summary: Current law requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in consultation
with the State Air Resources Board, to adopt regulations to achieve the organic waste reduction goals
established by the state board for 2020 and 2025, as provided. Current law requires the department,
no later than July 1, 2020, and in consultation with the state board, to analyze the progress that the
waste sector, state government, and local governments have made in achieving these organic waste
reduction goals. This bill would require the department, in consultation with the state board, to provide
assistance to local jurisdictions, including, but not limited to, any funding appropriated by the
Legislature in the annual Budget Act, for purposes of assisting local agencies to comply with these
provisions, including any regulations adopted by the department.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  SB 983 (Eggman D)   Consumer warranty protection: express warranties.
  Status: 3/22/2022-Set for hearing April 5.
  Location: 2/23/2022-S. JUD.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/5/2022  1:30 p.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 1200  SENATE JUDICIARY, UMBERG, Chair
  Summary: Under current law, every manufacturer making an express warranty with respect to an

electronic or appliance product, including televisions, radios, audio or video recording equipment, major
home appliances, antennas, and rotators, with a wholesale price to the retailer of not less than $50
nor more than $99.99 is required to make available to service and repair facilities sufficient service
literature and functional parts to effect the repair of the product for at least 3 years after the date a
product model or type was manufactured, regardless of whether the 3-year period exceeds the
warranty period for the product. Current law also requires every manufacturer making an express
warranty with respect to an electronic or appliance product, as described above, with a wholesale
price to the retailer of $100 or more, to make available to service and repair facilities sufficient service
literature and functional parts to effect the repair of the product for at least 7 years after the date a
product model or type was manufactured, regardless of whether the 7-year period exceeds the
warranty period for the product. This bill would instead require the manufacturer of an electronic or
appliance product, in the above-described circumstances and timeframes, to make available, on fair
and reasonable terms, sufficient service literature, at no charge, and prescribed functional parts and
tools, including documentation, tools, software and parts needed to disable the lock or function during
the course of the diagnosis, maintenance, or repair of a product, to owners of the product, service and
repair facilities, and service dealers.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Support  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

    Notes:  Support letter submitted.
 

  SB 1046 (Eggman D)   Solid waste: precheckout bags.
  Status: 3/14/2022-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-

referred to Com. on E.Q.
  Location: 2/23/2022-S. E.Q.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  3/28/2022  9 a.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 2100  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN,
Chair

  Summary: Current law defines a “single-use carryout bag” for this purpose to mean a bag made of
plastic, paper, or other material that is provided by a store to a customer at the point of sale and that
is not a recycled paper bag, as defined, or a reusable grocery bag that meets specified requirements.
This bill would additionally prohibit, on and after an unspecified date, a store, as defined, from
providing a precheckout bag to a customer if the bag is not either a compostable bag, as described, or
a recycled paper bag. The bill would define a “precheckout bag” for this purpose to mean a bag
provided to a customer before the customer reaches the point of sale, that is designed to protect a
purchased item from damaging or contaminating other purchased items in a checkout bag, or to
contain an unwrapped food item.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Support  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

Page 6/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 23 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ebqGIX05nSPNjTOr6CgNP3NXC8rmPDz3WofjwRD51TxPQmeiCMTGZfWzRbTkZcg8
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ebqGIX05nSPNjTOr6CgNP3NXC8rmPDz3WofjwRD51TxPQmeiCMTGZfWzRbTkZcg8
http://sd05.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd05.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=abf35RUjcPte%2F%2F74jp4DFTRbpP%2Flosq10U3WrT5%2BoKKPDt0GNUZLgmcLTmKrD0%2Fu
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=abf35RUjcPte%2F%2F74jp4DFTRbpP%2Flosq10U3WrT5%2BoKKPDt0GNUZLgmcLTmKrD0%2Fu
http://sd05.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd05.senate.ca.gov/


    Notes:  Sign-on support letter submitted.
 

  SB 1153 (Archuleta D)   Rechargeable Battery Recycling Act of 2006: data reporting.
  Status: 2/23/2022-Referred to Com. on E.Q.
  Location: 2/23/2022-S. E.Q.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  4/20/2022  1:30 p.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 2100  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair

  Summary: The Rechargeable Battery Recycling Act of 2006 requires the Department of Toxic
Substances Control, by July 1 of each year, to survey, as specified, battery handling or battery recycling
facilities, and to post on its internet website the estimated amount, by weight, of each type of
rechargeable batteries returned for recycling during the prior year. This bill would require a battery
handling or battery recycling facility to provide that data to the department in the form requested by
the department and on or before the date requested by the department.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  SB 1232 (Allen D)   Solid waste: products: labeling: biodegradability.
  Status: 3/8/2022-Set for hearing March 28.
  Location: 3/2/2022-S. E.Q.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  3/28/2022  9 a.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 2100  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN,
Chair

  Summary: Current law prohibits the sale or offering for sale of a product that is labeled as
"biodegradable," "degradable," or "decomposable," and prohibits implying that a product will break
down, fragment, biodegrade, or decompose in a landfill or other environment, unless the product
meets one of several specified standards relating to environmental marketing claims. This bill would
additionally allow a manufacturer to make a claim that a product is "biodegradable," "degradable," or
"decomposable" if the product, among other things, does not contain an intentionally added ingredient
determined by the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to present a risk to human health
from dermal or oral exposure or if the department determines, with respect to a specific product,
material, or ingredient, that there is competent and reliable evidence supporting a claim that it is
"biodegradable," "degradable," or "decomposable."

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Watch  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

 

  SB 1256 (Wieckowski D)   Waste management: disposable propane cylinders.
  Status: 3/10/2022-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-

referred to Com. on E.Q.
  Location: 3/2/2022-S. E.Q.
  Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

  Calendar:  3/28/2022  9 a.m. - 1021 O Street, Room 2100  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN,
Chair

  Summary: Would, on and after January 1, 2028, prohibit the sale of disposable propane cylinders, as
defined, and would make the violation of this provision subject to specified civil penalties. The bill
would authorize a city attorney or county counsel to impose these civil penalties, as provided.

    Client  Position  Priority       
    RethinkWaste  Support  Priority 2

(Medium) 
     

    Notes:  Sign-on support letter submitted.
Total Measures: 23
Total Tracking Forms: 23

Page 7/7
FULL PACKET PAGE 24 of 35

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=KXWIkY6uy9GGOzpQP5uJ8%2FS8Mfw18EQfImIOYHb2I1DepcYaN%2B5EgBOMwMqELnrJ
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=KXWIkY6uy9GGOzpQP5uJ8%2FS8Mfw18EQfImIOYHb2I1DepcYaN%2B5EgBOMwMqELnrJ
http://sd32.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd32.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=aJhRZzHiXig9VvQUtl6nC%2FcPotq4E7Ff8gLF0kk0FusONJggz%2BVahLEgkklpwLKE
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=aJhRZzHiXig9VvQUtl6nC%2FcPotq4E7Ff8gLF0kk0FusONJggz%2BVahLEgkklpwLKE
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nxYWkyAeKkreXG%2B1JJWRVUp6H8wlO6AiwoI1u74xRqHNI3Uu%2BD%2Fl7VRTXsqv22dT
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nxYWkyAeKkreXG%2B1JJWRVUp6H8wlO6AiwoI1u74xRqHNI3Uu%2BD%2Fl7VRTXsqv22dT
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/


 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
March 15, 2021 
 
The Honorable Nancy Skinner   The Honorable Philip Ting 
Chair, Senate Budget & Fiscal Review              Chair, Assembly Budget Committee 
Committee       1021 O Street, Suite8230  
1021 O Street, Suite 8630    Sacramento, CA 95814 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE:   Budget Request – $180 million (General Fund):  Local Assistance for Organic 

Waste Recycling Program Development and Implementation  
 
On behalf of the undersigned organizations, we respectfully request a one-time $180 
million increase (General Fund) in local assistance to continue helping cities and 
counties develop and implement organic waste recycling programs, as required by the 
Department of Resource Recovery’s (CalRecycle) Organic Waste Reduction 
Regulations (SB 1383). This budget request builds on the $60 million down payment 
approved by the Legislature last year, and will further help local governments 
implement this important greenhouse gas emission reducing program and lower the 
cost to ratepayers. 
 
Cities and counties greatly appreciate the Legislature’s funding for SB 1383 local 
assistance in the FY 2021-22 budget and for CalRecycle’s quick establishment of the 
grant program. However, additional funding is greatly needed. At a recent Senate 
Budget Committee Subcommittee hearing, CalRecycle Director Machi Wagoner 
indicated that CalRecycle received 470 applications for the initial round of funding, 
which is insufficient to support local government projects seeking resources.  
 
Local governments are the backbone for achieving California’s solid waste 
management and recycling goals.  CalRecycle’s SB 1383 Regulations adopted in 
November 2020 require local governments to reduce landfill disposal of organic waste 
75% by 2025 and to increase edible food waste recovery 20%.  SB 1383 is the farthest-
reaching solid waste management change since AB 939 (Sher, 1989) and CalRecycle 
has estimated statewide implementation will cost $20-$40 billion over the next decade, 
including the addition of 50-100 new organic waste recycling facilities.   
 
Compliance obligations for local governments began in early 2022 and local 
governments continue to develop a comprehensive suite of local collection, 
enforcement, and funding programs.  These activities include hiring new staff and 
consultants, adopting ordinances, arranging for appropriate collection services, 
establishing inspection and enforcement programs, procuring recovered organic waste 

FULL PACKET PAGE 25 of 35



 
 
 

 

products, providing education and outreach, developing edible food recovery 
programs, and reporting to CalRecycle.  
 
In order to fund all these activities, local governments must raise their rates to cover the 
additional costs of administering the program. At a time when inflation is at its highest 
rate in decades, our residents are already feeling the negative impacts on their 
personal budgets. This is the right time for the state to continue to fund the 
implementation of this program to help keep solid waste and recycling rates from 
increasing dramatically.   
 
The undersigned organizations jointly request a one-time $180 million increase (General 
Fund) for local assistance to cities and counties for local organic waste recycling 
program development and initial implementation activities in the same manner as the 
current SB 1383 local assistance grants administered by CalRecycle. 
 
Given that CalRecycle has already created this grant program, we urge the Legislature 
to add more funding to this program to help meet local government needs.  
 
This funding request alone is not sufficient to achieve the state’s organic waste 
recycling targets, especially considering the estimated $20-$40 billion anticipated total 
implementation cost; however, it will go a long way to help local governments and 
accelerate the develop the programs necessary to achieve those goals and to carry 
out early implementation activities.   
 
California must significantly increase the number of organic waste recycling facilities to 
achieve the state’s goals.  As we advocated for last year, we continue to need 
dedicated funding for infrastructure development.  We believe there is merit to 
supplementing this budget request with an infusion of state funding into CalRecycle’s 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Grant and Loan Programs to provide financial assistance to 
develop additional organic waste recycling infrastructure.   
 
Additional funding should be focused to regional organic waste recycling and 
procurement solutions and to rapidly scale up edible food recovery programs.  Finally, 
we again suggest allocating funding to CalRecycle to develop a statewide program 
environmental impact report for the siting and construction of organic waste 
composting facilities, as this could significantly reduce the time and cost to local 
governments necessary to construct new composting facilities. 
 
Developing suitable programs for organics diversion, obtaining the necessary approvals 
of programs and costs to rate payers through elected bodies, awarding contracts, and 
then implementing these programs will take time and resources.  This $180 million 
allocation will go a long way to help local governments develop and implement 
effective organic waste recycling programs; however, we note that further statutory 
and regulatory changes may be necessary to maximize program effectiveness and 
efficiency, and address challenges that may arise in program implementation. 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 26 of 35



 
 
 

 

We respectfully request the Legislature appropriate $180 million (General Fund) for local 
assistance as outlined above.  If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate 
to contact Derek Dolfie of Cal Cities at ddolfie@calcities.org; John Kennedy of RCRC at 
jkennedy@rcrcnet.org; or Catherine Freeman of CSAC at cfreeman@counties.org. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Legislative Affairs, Lobbyist 
League of California Cities (Cal Cities) 
 
 
 
 
 
Catherine Freeman 
Legislative Representative 
California State Association of Counties 
(CSAC) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Kennedy 
Policy Advocate 
Rural County Representatives of 
California (RCRC) 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner 
Los Angeles County Integrated Waste 
Management Task Force 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Tedd Ward, M.S. 
Director 
Del Norte Solid Waste Management 
Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Joe La Mariana 
Executive Director 
RethinkWaste 
 

 

General Manager 
Monterey Regional Waste Management 
District 
 
 
 
 
 
Ken Etherington 
Executive Director 
RecycleSmart 

 
 
 
 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 27 of 35

mailto:ddolfie@calcities.org
mailto:ddolfie@calcities.org
mailto:jkennedy@rcrcnet.org
mailto:jkennedy@rcrcnet.org
mailto:cfreeman@counties.org
mailto:cfreeman@counties.org


 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Kevin Bell, P.E. 
Deputy Executive Director 
Western Placer Waste Management 
Authority (WPWMA) 
 
 
 
 
Timothy Burroughs 
Executive Director 
StopWaste 

 
 
 
Doug Kobold  
LTF Chair 
Solid Waste Association of North 
America (SWANA) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
cc: Members of the Senate Budget and Fiscal Review Committee  
 Members of the Assembly Budget Committee 
 Joe Stephenshaw, Director, Senate Budget and Fiscal Review Committee 

Christian Griffith, Chief Consultant, Assembly Budget Committee 
Kirk Feely, Consultant, Senate Republican Caucus  
Joseph Shinstock, Consultant, Assembly Republican Caucus 
Kip Lipper, Office of Senate President Pro Tempore Toni Atkins 
Marie Liu, Office of Assembly Speaker Anthony Rendon 
Joanne Roy, Consultant, Senate Budget and Fiscal Review Committee 
Shy Forbes, Consultant, Assembly Budget Committee 
Kirstin Kolpitcke, Consultant, Assembly Republican Caucus 
Emily Reeb, Consultant, Senate Republican Caucus 
Genevieve Wong, Consultant, Senate Environmental Quality Committee 
Elizabeth MacMillan, Consultant, Assembly Natural Resources Committee 
Scott Seekatz, Consultant, Senate Republican Caucus 
Keely Bosler, Director, California Department of Finance  
Erika Li, Chief Deputy Director, Budget, California Department of Finance 
Matt Almy, Program Budget Manager, California Department of Finance  
Sergio Aguilar, Assistant Program Budget Manager, California Department of 
Finance  

 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 28 of 35



 

610 Elm Street, Suite 202           P: 650-802-3500 
San Carlos, CA 94070                  F: 650-802-3501         RethinkWaste.org 

 
MEMBER AGENCIES: City of Belmont • City of Burlingame • City of East Palo Alto • City of Foster City • Town of Hillsborough  
City of Menlo Park • City of Redwood City • City of San Carlos • City of San Mateo • County of San Mateo • West Bay Sanitary District 

 
 

March 11, 2022 
The Honorable Susan Eggman 
1021 O Street, Suite 8530  
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Re: SB 983 (Eggman): Right to Repair – SUPPORT 
 
On behalf of RethinkWaste, I am pleased to support SB 983 (Eggman), which provides Californians the resources 
they need to fix electronics and appliances. This legislation will keep electronic waste off the scrap heap and curb 
the number of lithium-ion (Li-ion) batteries entering and starting fires in the waste stream. 
 
RethinkWaste (i.e. South Bayside Waste Management Authority) is a joint powers authority of eleven public 
agencies (Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, 
San Mateo, the County of San Mateo and the West Bay Sanitary District) in San Mateo County. Currently, we 
serve approximately 428,000 residents and 11,000 businesses and have been a leader in the delivery of 
innovative waste reduction and recycling programs since our formation in 1982. 
 
Owners of electronics and independent repair shops too often do not have access to repair guides, tools, or parts 
essential to extending the life of consumer electronics. When the manufacturers of these electronic products are 
the only entities that hold the correct information and parts to make repairs, they can set artificially high repair 
prices that ultimately result in an unnecessary and wasteful high turnover of electronics. 
 
Electronic waste (e-waste) is the fastest growing waste stream on the planet—up 21% from 2015–2020—and our 
ability to process waste is not keeping up. It is estimated that Californians throw away 46,900 cell phones every 
day and discard 1.1 million tons of toxic electronic waste each year.  
 
Further concerning, Li-ion batteries are often embedded in rechargeable electronics, and when improperly 
discarded, these batteries pose a serious fire, health, and safety hazards to our waste stream. RethinkWaste has 
personally experienced the catastrophic effects of Li-ion battery fires. In 2016, a Li-ion battery ignited a fire at our 
municipal solid waste and recycling center in San Mateo County. As a result, we were forced to shut down the 
facility for 90 days and caused nearly $8.5 million in damages. Because of these damages, securing proper 
insurance to operate the facility has been immensely difficult as insurers say the amount of risk involved is too 
high. Due to the fire, we have only been able to get full insurance coverage through a combination of seven 
companies. 
 
Many discarded electronic devices could be diverted from the waste stream and used again, but simple repairs 
can become impossible without the proper tools and information. 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 29 of 35



 

 

For these reasons, we strongly support expanding collection and recycling of e-waste, as well as support SB 983 
(Eggman) for slowing the creation of electronic waste by giving consumers and independent repair shops access 
to the tools, parts, service information they need to keep more products in use and out of the trash. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Joe La Mariana 
Executive Director 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FULL PACKET PAGE 30 of 35



 

610 Elm Street, Suite 202           P: 650-802-3500 
San Carlos, CA 94070                  F: 650-802-3501         RethinkWaste.org 
 
MEMBER AGENCIES: City of Belmont • City of Burlingame • City of East Palo Alto • City of Foster City • Town of Hillsborough  
City of Menlo Park • City of Redwood City • City of San Carlos • City of San Mateo • County of San Mateo • West Bay Sanitary District 

 
March 14, 2022 

The Honorable Luz Rivas 
1020 N Street, Room 6140 
Sacramento, California 95814 
 
Re: AB 1690 (L. Rivas): Smoking Waste Pollution Prevention Act – SUPPORT 
 
Dear Assemblymember Rivas: 
 
On behalf of RethinkWaste, I am pleased to support AB 1690 (L. Rivas), the Smoking Waste Pollution Prevention 
Act, which would transition California away from polluting, wasteful, and hazardous, non-health protective single-
use smoking products by phasing out the sale of single-use cigarette filters, all-in-one non-rechargeable electronic 
vaping devices, and plastic cigar tips. 
 
RethinkWaste (i.e. South Bayside Waste Management Authority) is a joint powers authority of eleven public 
agencies (Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, 
San Mateo, the County of San Mateo and the West Bay Sanitary District) in San Mateo County. Currently, we 
serve approximately 428,000 residents and 11,000 businesses and have been a leader in the delivery of 
innovative waste reduction and recycling programs since our formation in 1982. 
 
In 1964, the U.S. Surgeon General confirmed cigarette “filters” were ineffective at protecting smokers from 
diseases caused by smoking, and in addition, are a source of plastic pollution as they are discarded into the 
environment. In fact, according to the 2014 Report of the U.S. Surgeon General on the Health Consequences of 
Smoking and a 2001 Monograph from the U.S. National Cancer Institute, filters may provide increased risks for 
certain types of cancer.  
 
In the nearly 60 years that we have known filters are ineffective, they have become one of the most littered 
products on the planet. Single-use, smoking product waste is a toxic environmental pollutant and human health 
hazard that is extremely costly to manage and contains numerous hazardous and carcinogenic chemicals. 
Smokers and non-smokers alike do not know that almost all filters are made of the poorly degradable plastic, 
cellulose acetate, and most smokers report discarding them inappropriately into the environment as part of the 
smoking ritual. Cellulose acetate filters persist in the environment for decades and break down into microplastics 
that accumulate environmentally and biologically. Cigarette filters are also the foremost litter item found on 
beaches and roadsides, amounting to 34% of the total beach litter collected in California. 
 
All-in-one vaping devices are electronics that are disposable by design and contain a lithium-ion (Li-ion) battery 
that cannot be recharged. The battery and other toxic chemicals in them render them hazardous waste at end-of-
life, and therefore they are not allowed in California’s trash or recycling system. Because of inadequate public 
information about the toxicity of all-in-one vaping devices, Californians unknowingly discard them into household 
waste bins where they have the potential to cause fires and introduce hazardous chemicals in waste management 

FULL PACKET PAGE 31 of 35



systems and landfills. 
 
RethinkWaste has personally experienced the catastrophic effects of Li-ion battery fires. In 2016, a Li-ion battery 
ignited a fire at our municipal solid waste and recycling center in San Mateo County. As a result, we were forced 
to shut down the facility for 90 days and caused nearly $8.5 million in damages. Because of these damages, 
securing proper insurance to operate the facility has been immensely difficult as insurers say the amount of risk 
involved is too high. Due to the fire, we have only been able to get full insurance coverage through a combination 
of seven companies. 
 
Californians deserve protection from the unnecessary waste and chemical pollution from disposable filters, vapes, 
and cigar tips. These do not protect public health and are a source of plastic and chemical contaminants in the 
environment, as well as a public safety risk. For all these reasons, we strongly support AB 1690 (L. Rivas). 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Joe La Mariana 
Executive Director

FULL PACKET PAGE 32 of 35



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 21, 2022 
 
Senator Ben Allen, Chair  
Senate Environmental Quality Committee 
1021 O Street, Room 3230 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE: SB 1256 (Wieckowski) Waste management: disposable propane cylinders - SUPPORT 
 
Dear Senator Allen, 
 
On behalf of the listed organizations, we are pleased to support SB 1256 (Wieckowski), which 
would prohibit the sale of disposable propane cylinders, as defined, and would make the violation 
of this provision subject to specified civil penalties. 
 
Local government solid waste and recycling operations are responsible for the collection,  
processing, recycling, and disposal of various forms of waste. Local agencies and their contractors 
– funded by local ratepayers – are responsible for managing residential and commercial waste 
streams. Some consumer products are expensive to process while others pose significant 
environmental, public health, or occupational safety and health concerns. 
 
One consumer product that has been a longtime concern are the single-use 1lb propane cylinders 
(also known as propane tanks) typically used in camping stoves, lanterns, welding equipment, and 
more. It is estimated that between 40-60 million of these single-use 1lb propane cylinders are sold 
in the United States every year. California accounts for roughly 12% of the population of the 
United States, so we can safely estimate that somewhere between 4.8 and 7.2 million single-use 
1lb propane cylinders are sold into California each year. These small 1lb propane cylinders are the 
only propane cylinders that are sold as single-use. All other propane cylinders 5 gallons (20lb) or 
larger have always been refillable and designed and marketed for refilling. 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 33 of 35



 

 

Disposable propane cylinders are also problematic from a safety perspective. In most situations it 
is impossible to know whether a cylinder is completely empty. If a cylinder ends up at a Material 
Recovery Facility (MRF) with complex machinery used to separate materials, there is a risk of 
explosion that could cause injury to personnel or damage to infrastructure. This is part of what 
contributes to the cost of collecting and recycling these cylinders. In order to be safely recycled, 
they must be evacuated and then punctured using special equipment to ensure that they are safely 
processed. 
 
Local, state, and national parks have long struggled with the impacts of improperly disposed 
single-use 1lb propane cylinders. A 2019 article from Waste 360 reported that the Yosemite 
National Park collects between 20,000 and 25,000 tanks a year and trucks them more than two 
hours away to a facility that processes low-grade hazardous waste. One of Yosemite’s 
sustainability initiatives is focused on reducing improper disposal of propane tanks by promoting 
use of refillable tanks. As a result, the only cylinders available for purchase inside of Yosemite are 
refillable.  
 
For the many reasons described above, we strongly SUPPORT SB 1256 (Wieckowski) and urge 
your support when the bill is heard in Senate Environmental Quality Committee. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Doug Kobold, Executive Director 
California Product Stewardship Council 

 
Vince De Lange, General Manager 
Delta Diablo 

 
Jonathon "Josh" Simpson, Vice President 
Little Kamper, LP 

 
Kevin Bell, Deputy Executive Director 
Western Placer Waste Management Authority 

 
Shell Cleave, Founder 
Sea Hugger 

 
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 
Rethink Waste 

 
Jordan Wells, Director of Advocacy and 
Communications 
National Stewardship Action Council 

 
Susan Stephenson, Executive Director 
California Interfaith Power & Light 

FULL PACKET PAGE 34 of 35



 

 

 
Robert Engler, Mayor 
City of Thousand Oaks 

 
David Farion, President 
California Waste & Recycle Association 

 
Nick Lapis, Director of Advocacy 
Californians Against Waste 

 

 
Laura Ferrante, Government Affairs Advocate  
Resource Recovery Coalition of California 

 
Laura McKaughan, CRRA President 
California Resource Recovery Association 

 
Blake Inscore, Chair 
Del Norte Solid Waste Management 
Authority 

 
Larry Klein, Mayor 
Sunnyvale 

 

 

FULL PACKET PAGE 35 of 35


	1_Agenda Leg Comm 04042022 
	3_Executive Directors Update
	4_A_Approval of 02072022_Legislative Committee Meeting DRAFT Minutes
	4_B_Approval of 03072022_Legislative Committee Meeting DRAFT Minutes
	5_Legislative Updates from Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) and CommitteeDiscussion



